Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent auditor’s report

To the Members of Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statemenls

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of changes inequity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summaryof significant accounting policies and other
explanatoryinformation.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give theinformation required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and totai comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other
comprehensive income), changes inequity and its cash flows for theyear then ended.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our auditin accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified undersection 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities underthose Standardsare further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statementssection of our report. We are independent of the Companyin accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe thatthe auditevidence we haveobtained is sufficientand appropriate to providea basisfor our opinion.

Other Information

4.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Director’s report, but doesnot include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The Directors report is expected to be made available to us afterthe dateof this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, ourresponsibilityis to read the otherinformation identified
above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whetherthe other informationis materiallyinconsistent
with the financial statements orour knowledge obtained in the audit, orotherwise appears to be materially misstated.
When we read the Director’s report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to

communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate action as applicable under the
relevantlaws and regulations
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsiblefor the matters stated in section 1:34(5) of Lhe Acl with respect to the

preparation of these financial statements thatgive a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Companyin accordance with the accounting principles generallyaccepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act This responsibility also indudes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Companyand for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operatingeffectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the finandal
statements that give a trueand fair view and arefree from material misstatement, whetherduetofraud or error.

6. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a

going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternativebut to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

7.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a highlevel of assurance, but is not a guarantee thatan audit conducted inaccordance with SAs
will always detect amaterial misstatement when it exists. Misstatementscan arise from fraud or errorand are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgmentand maintain professional sceptidsm
throughout the audit. We also:

Identifyand assess therisks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whetherdueto fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain auditevidence thatis sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. Therisk of not detectinga material misstatement resulting from fraud ishigherthan for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understandingof internal control relevant to the audit in order to design auditprocedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing ouropinion on whether
the company has adequate internal financial controlswith reference to financial statements in placeand the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures madeby management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going conce rnbasis of accountingand, based on the audit
evidenceobtained, whethera material uncertainty exists related to eventsor conditions that may cast significantdoubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

WAA
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying lransactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

9. We communicate with those charged with governanceregarding among other matters, the planned scope and ti mingof
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during
our audit.

10. We also providethose charged with governance with a statement that we have complied withrelevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

11. As required bythe Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure Ba statementon the matters specified in
paragraphs 3and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

12. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required bylaw have been kept by the Companysofar as it appears from our
examination of those books.

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensiveincome), the Statement of Changes
in Equilyand Cashi Fluw Slalement dealt with bythis Report arein agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Companyand
the operatingeffectiveness of such controls, referto our separate Reportin “Annexure A”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements — Refer
Note 26(E) to the financial statements;

ii. The Company has long-term contracts as at March 31, 2021 for which there were no material foreseeable losses. The
Companydid not have derivative contracts as at March 31, 2021.
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iii. There were no amounts which were required Lo be Lransferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Companyduring the year ended March 31, 2021.

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Companyfor the year ended March
31, 2021.

13. The Companyhas paid/ providedfor managerial remunerationin accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule Vtothe Act.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountant LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E300009
Chartered Accountants

PR
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Jyoti Vaish

Partner

Membership Number 096521
UDIN: 21096521AAAAAT5521

Place: Gurugram
Date: April 27,2021
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Tata Steel Utilities and
Infrastructure Services Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the finandal
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company's management is responsible forestablishingand maintaininginternal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderlyand efficient conduct of its business, includingadherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, theaccuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required underthe Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibilityis toexpress an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to finandal
statements based on our audit. We conducted our auditin accordancewith the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Finaneial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be
prescribed undersection 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicabletoan audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable toan audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAL Those Standardsand the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls withreference to financial statements was established
and maintainedand if such controlsoperated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal finandal
controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with referenceto financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal finandial
controls with referenceto financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether dueto fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with referenceto financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparationof financial statements for
external purposesin accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financal
controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairlyreflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurancethat transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, induding
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected., Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods aresubjectto the risk that the internal financial control controls
with referenceto financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectivelyas at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued bythe Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E300009
Chartered Accountants

T,

Jyoti Vaish

Partner

Membership Number: 096521
UDIN: 21096521AAAAAT 5521
Place: Gurugram

Date: April 27,2021
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i. (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation, of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management during the year and no
material discrepancies havebeen noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is
reasonable.

(c) Thetitle deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 2 on fixed assetsto the financial statements, are

iii.

(@)

)]

(0

iv.

vi.

vii. (a)

()

held in the name of the Company. According to the information and explanation given tous and the records
examined by us, we report that immovable properties of building amounting to Rs. 404 lacs have been
constructed on land not owned by the Company.

The physical verification of inventory have been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management during
the year. The diserepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were
not material and have been appropriately dealt with in the books of accounts.

The Company has granted unsecured loan, to one of its subsidiary companies covered in the register maintained
under Section 189 of the Act.

In respect of the aforesaid loans, the terms and conditions under which such loans were granted are not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

In respect of the aforesaid loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated. The repayments of the principal amounts and interest havenot been received as stipulatedin the
agreement.

In respect of the aforesaid loan, the total amount overdue for more than ninetydays as at March 31, 2021 is Rs.
1,750 laes (including interest of Rs. 100 lacs for the period May 31, 2012 to May 31, 2013, is considered doubtful
of recovery as the subsidiary company had ceased its operation. Accordingly, the amounts have been fully
provided forin these financial statements.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the loans and investments
made, and guarantees and security provided byit.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaningof Sections 73, 74,
75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there undertothe extent notified.

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain cost
records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Actinrespect of its products.

We have broadly reviewed the same, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescri bed accounts and
records have been made and maintained. We havenot, however, made a detailed examination of the records
with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations givento usand the records of the Company examined byus,
in our opinion, the Companyis regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund,
employees’ stateinsurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess, goods and service tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with theappropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,
there are noduesof dutyof customs and goods and service tax which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute. The particularsof dues of incometax, sales tax, , entrytax, electricity duty, value added tax, as at
March 31, 2021 which have not beendeposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

TN AAC
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Nature of Amoufnt Period to which Forum where the
Name,ofithe, STime dues (Rs. in amount relates dispute is pendin
Lakhs)* p s B
Jharkhand CST Act, 1956 | VAT Demand ana6oandaoogio | § LT ommissionerof
arkhan +195 56 78 9 Commercial Taxes
Jharkhand VAT Act, VAT Demand 2007-08 and 2013-14 The Comn.ussmner of
2005 203 Commercial Taxes
Madhya Pradesh VAT Assistant Commissioner
Act, 2002 VAREEmEnd 18 20700 of Commercial Taxes
B 1 VAT i ti
West Bengal VAT Act, VAT Demand 56805 Co.mmerclal Taxation
2003 32 Tribunal
Jharkhand CST Act, 1956 | VAT Demand 2011-12 and 2013-14 Co,m mercia] Taxation
62 Tribunal
Appellate & Revisional
:\c’;s; Bengal VAT Act, VAT Demand 2012-13 to 2016-17 Board, Government of
144 West Bengal
Sr. Joint Commissioner of
t B 1 VAT Act
Z\;ZS enga Act, VAT Demand 2017-18 Commercial Taxes
3 2 (Appeals)
Sr. Joint Commissioner of
Madhya Pradesh VAT VAT Demand 2011-12 Commercial Taxes
Act, 2002
10 (Appeals)
Andhra Pradesh VAT VAT Demand 2008-09 to High Court of Andhra
Act, 2005 109 2009-10 Pradesh
2008-09, 2011-12, 2015- Joint Commissioner of
Jharkhand CST Act, 1956 | VAT Demand j ) Commercial Taxes
16, 2016-17
6U (Appeals)
Joint Commissioner of
h O12- d 2014-15 t
.;Ozrkhand A, VAT Demand zoi 6-i3 a i Commercial Taxes
5 4,600 7 (Appeals)
Joint Commissioner of
Karnataka VAT Act, VAT Demand 2008- 09 & 2015-16 Commercial Taxes
2003
18 (Appeals)
FaTnatakaValeoey VAT Demand 2011-12 t0 2012-13 High Court of Karnataka
2003 917
. Deputy Commissioner
Odisha CST Act, 1957 VAT Demand 3 2012-13 to 2015-16 (ABpeals)
Kerala VAT Act, 2003 VAT Demand 2016-17 Deputy/Commissioner
1 (Appeals)
Service Tax Commissioner of Central
Finance Act, 1994 2008-09 to 2016-17 Excise & Service Tax,
Demand
8,821 Jamshedpur
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax AY 2010-11 to AY 2012- In?ome Tax Appellate
Demand 407 13 Tribunal
Karnataka VAT Act, VAT Demand 2009-10 Co.mmerc1al Taxation
2003 86 Tribunal
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Nature of Ammfnt Period to which Forum where the
Name, GHlie,S Tt dues (Rs. in amount relates dispute is pending
Lakhs)*
Karnataka CST Act, 1957 Joint Commissioner of
VAT Demand 2016-17 Commercial Taxes
31 (Appeals)
Deputy Commissioner of
Commercial Taxes,
Jharkhand EntryTax Act Entry tax 2011-12 to 2017-18 Jamshedpur, Commercial
Demand Taxes Department,
Government of
212 Jharkhand
Electricity Duty Act EDllft?rlmty L 2013-14 t0 2015-16 ’(I;::;Sx?:;: QIS'SI}:;:; o

*net of amount paid under protest and amount adjusted againstrefunds

viii.

ix.

xi.

xii,

xiii.

xiv.

XV,

As the Company does not have anyloans or borrowings from any financial institution or bank or Government,
nor hasitissued anydebentures as at the balancesheetdate, the provisions of Clause 3(viii) of the Order are
not applicableto the Company.. The Company has not issued any debenturesat the balancesheet date.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer (including debt
instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the Orderare not applicable to the
Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with
the generally accepted auditing practices inIndia, and according to the information and explanations given to
us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its
officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we beeninformed of anysuch case by the
Management.

The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the reyuisile approvals
mandated bythe provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule Vto the Act.
Alsorefer paragraph 13 of our main audit report

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the provisions of
Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has enteredinto transactionswith related parties in compliance with the provisionsof Sections
177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the finandal
statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions withits directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, the provisionsof Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicableto the Company.
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xvi.  The Companyis not required to be registered under Section 45-IAof the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, the provisionsof Clause 3(xvi) of the Order arenot applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E300009
Chartered Accountants

Tt

Jyoti Vaish

Partner

Membership Number: 096521
UDIN: 21096521AAAAATR521
Place: Gurugram

Date: April 27, 2021



TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Farmerly - Jamshedpur Utllities & Services Company Limited)
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

() ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
(b) Caplital work-in-progress
{c) Intangible assets
(d) Right to use Propetty, Plant and Equipment
(e} Equity accounted investments
(f) Investments In subsidiarles
" (g) Financlal assets
{l} Trade recelivablas
() Other financlal assets
{h) Other non-financlal assets
{l} Non current Income tax assets
{]} Deferred tax assets (Net)

7

Current assets

(a} Inventorles

{b) Flnancial assets
() Investments
{ll) Trade recelivables
{il} Cash and cash aquivalents
{iv) Other balance with Bank
{v) Other flnanclal assets

(¢} Other non-financlal assets

TOTAL ASSETS

()  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{1} Equity
{a) Equlty Share Capital
(b) Other Equity
{i) Reservesand Surplus

7]

Non-current liabllitles
{a) Financlal liabllitles

(i) Long term borrowings

(i) Trade payables

(i1} Other financial llabilities
{b) Long term provislong_
{¢) Retlrement benefit obligations
(d) Deferred Income

Current liabilitles
{a) Flnancial liabilities
{i} Short term borrowings
() Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding due of micro and small enterprises
{b) Total outstanding due other than {ll){a} above
(i) Other financial llabllitles
{b) Short term provisions
{c) Retirement benefit obllgations
{d) Deferred income
{e) Other liabilities

IE)

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheat.

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Note No. R in Lakhs R in Lakhs
02 21,081 20,341
02 2,443 2,604
03 331 402
03A 103 240
04 1,365 1,368
05 400 400
06 2,186 2,186
07 885 270
08 371 646
2,218 2,993
2,547 2,613
33,930 34,063
09 9,040 9,300
10 2,907 1,101
06 19,566 20,376
11 1,235 2,352
11 1,262 3,772
07 p 16,676 14,262
08 3,446 4,173
54,132 55,336
88,062 89,399
12 2,435 2,435
16,961 13,948
19,396 16,383
13 - 78
19 151 245
14 8,657 8,460
15 5,167 5,339
16 778 1,275
17 8,835 8,279
23,588 23,676
13 -
19
9,508 1,115
24,519 32,349
14 2,992 3,883
15 1,667 1,606
16 13 11
17 863 776
18 5,516 9,600
45,078 49,340
88,062 89,399

This Is the Balance Sheet referred to In our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Reglstration Number - 304026E/E-300009
Chartered Accountants

NS
’3\3’/
Jyoti Valsh

Partner
Membership No - 096521

Place : Gurugram
Date : April 27, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chanakya Chaudha
Chairman
DIN: 02139568

-ra\.\r\%im a

Tarun Kumar Daga (
Managing Director
DHN: 01686499

Preetl Sehgal
Company Secretary

Place : Jamshedpur
Date : Aprll 27, 2021




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilitles & Services Company Limited)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

I Revenue from operations
Il Other Income
Il Total Revenue (I +II)

IV Expenses
(a) Direct Expenses
(b) Employee benefits expense
(c} Finance costs
(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense
(e) Other expenses
Total Expenses

V  Profit before taxes (lll - IV)

VI Tax Expense
(a) Current tax
- In respect of Current Year
- In respect of Prior Year
(b) Deferred tax
Total tax expense

VIl Profit after taxes (V - VI)

VIl Other comprehensive income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to the statement of profit and loss

(a) Remeasurement gains/(losses) on post employment defined benefit plans.
(ii) Income tax on items that will not be reclassified subsequently to the statement of profit

and loss. .
Total Other comprehensive {loss}/Income
IX Total comprehensive Income for the year (VI + VIII)

Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (Refer note 26(G})

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Note  For the year ended For the year ended
No. March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
X in Lakhs X in Lakhs

20 94,629 1,07,004
21 1,025 1,169
95,654 1,08,173

22 69,485 80,113
23 15,606 16,479
24 644 750
02 2,265 2,104
25 2,901 3,739
90,901 1,03,185

4,753 4,988

965 1,125
274 (34)

66 559

1,305 1,650

3,448 3,338
103 (636)

(26) 143

77 (493}

3,525 2,845

14.16 13.71

This Is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Reglstration Number - 304026E/E-300009
Chartered Accountants

T
Jyoti Vaish

Partner
Membership No - 096521

Place : Gurugram
Date : April 27, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

anakya Chau lév

Chairman
DIN: 02139568

Tarun Kumar Daga

N\

Taaa K v\na::DaOﬂ

Managing Director
DIN: 01686499

Place : Jamshedpur
Date : April 27, 2021

\‘@E& :
Man umar Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

sty

Preeti Sehgal

Company Secretary




[TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formetly - Jamshedpur Utilities & Services Company Limited)
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2021

W

Jyoti Valsh
|Partner
hembership No - 096521

Place : Gurugram
Date : Aprll 27, 2021

DIN: 02139568

Ew\mu mﬂ-b; r < N
Tarun Kumar Daga J

Managing Director

Place : Jamshedpur
Date : Aprll 27, 2021

Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
2021 2020
Rin Lakhs RIn Lakhs
A. Cash Flow from Operating actlvitles:
Profit before taxes 4,753 4,988
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 2,265 2,104
Finance costs charged to profit and loss account 644 750
Dividend Income from investments (121) {50)
Profit/(Loss) on sale of capital asset (1) -
Provision for inventory 9 44
Finance Income (248) (373)
Other non cash items (13) 1,220
Operating profit before changes in current/non current assets and liabilitles 7,288 8,683
Adjustments for:
Non current/ current financial and other assets {738) 5,004
Retirement benefit assets/obligations {392} 99
Inventories 250 (1,535)
Non current/ current financial and other liabilities/provisions (4,192) (2,242)
Deferred income 642 1,278
Cash generated from operatlons 2,858 11,287
Income taxes paid (excluding dividend tax) (490) {1,795)
MNet cash from/{used in) operating activitles 2,368 9,492
|8. Cash Flow from Investing activitles:
Purchase of capital assets (2,781) (5,359)
Sale of capital assets 18 -
Sale/{Purchase) of current investments (1,799) (1,100)
Dividend received from JV 121 50
Fixed deposits with banks (placed) / realised 2,034 (740}
Interest received from external investments / agencies 248 373
Net cash from/(used in) Investing actlvitles (2,159) (6,776)
C. Cash Flow from Financing actlvities:
Repayment of borrowings from external agencies {Bank etc.) - (12)
Interest paid to external agencies (Bank etc.) {663) (722)
Dividend paid (512) (171)
Tax on dividend paid - (25)
Repayment of principle portion of lease liabilities (134) {139)
Interest paid on lease liabilities (17) (27)
MNet cash from/(used In) financing actlvities (1,326) {1,096)
|Net Increase or decrease In cash or cash equlvalents (1,117) 1,620
Cash & cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 2,352 732
Cash & cash equlvalents as at the end of the year 1,235 2,352
Cash and cash equlvalents:
- Cash on hand 4 8
- Cheques, drafts on hand 72 -
- Balance in current account 1,159 2,344
1,235 2,352
Notes
1, Figures in brackets indicate outflows
2. Previous year figures have been recast/restated where necessary,
This is the Cash flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
For Price Waterhouse & Co. Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number - 304026 E/E-300009
Chartered Accountants o
akya Cl '} \ufar Agarwal
Chdirman

Chief Finandial Officer

IEAN

Preetl Sehgal
Company Secretary




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
\(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities & Services Company Limited)
Statememt Of Changes In Equity for the year ended March 31, 2021

A. Equity Share Capital {Issued and subsrcibed)
Balance as at March 31, 2019
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2020
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2021

B. Other Equity

Balance as at March 31, 2019

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Dividend paid during the year

Tax on Dividend paid

Balance as at March 31, 2020

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Dividend paid during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2021

Xin Lakhs
2,435
2,435
2,435
Xin Lakhs
Retained Earnings ocCt (Other Total
Comprehensive
Income)
12,100 (801) 11,299
3,338 3,338
- (493) (493)
(171) - (171)
{25) {25)
15,242 (1,294) 13,948
3,448 - 3,448
77 77
(512) - (512)
18,178 (1,217) 16,961

For Price Waterhouse & Co. Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number - 304026E/E-300009
Chartered Accountants

’&AD /

Jyoti Vaish

Partner

Membership No - 096521

Place : Gurugram
Date : April 27, 2021

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.

akya Chaudﬂé

Chairman
DIN: 02139568
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0

Tarun Kumar Daga
Managing Director

Place : Jamshedpur
Date : April 27, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

\"f‘Q

N
Manish Kiymar Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

AN

Preeti Sehgal
Company Secretary
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TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities and Services Company Limited)
Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies

(1)

(2)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Company Information

Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limited (Formerly known as Jamshedpur Utilities and Services Company Limited)
(‘TSUISL' or ‘the Company’) is a public limited Company incorporated in India with its registered office in Jamshedpur,
Jharkhand, India.

TSUISL is India’s first private sector comprehensive urban infrastructure service provider. Carved out of Tata Steel in 2004, it
has the legacy of over ten decades of experience in providing these services-water, waste water, power distribution, municipal
solid waste management and town planning- at Jamshedpur.

The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee (“X”) which is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates.

As on March 31, 2021, Tata Steel Limited owns 100% of the ordinary share of the Company and has the ability to influence the
Company operations.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 were approved by the board of directors and authorized for issue
on April 27, 2021.

Significant accounting policy

The significant accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below. Such
accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements, unless otherwise
indicated.

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”)
notified under section 133 of the companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, as amended
from time to time.

Basis for preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain assets and liabilities that
are required to be carried at fair values by Ind-AS.

The management of the Company have assessed its liquidity position (including the impact of COVID-19) and its possible
sources of funds. The management beliefs that the Company will be able to meet its obligation in next twelve months from the
balance sheet date. Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

The Company’s immediate holding Company Tata Steel Limited prepared its consolidated financial statements as required
under section 129(3) of the Act. TSUISL is an intermediate holding Company with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures and has availed the exemption as per proviso to rule 6 of section 129(3) of the act for not preparing its
consolidated financial statements.

Use of estimates and critical accounting judgments

In preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not clear from other sources. The estimates and the associated assumptlons are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from the:




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities and Services Company Limited)
Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies

(d)

Estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the eslimale is revised, and fulure periods affected.

Key source of estimation of uncertainty at the date of financial statements, which may cause material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, is in respect of impairment, useful lives of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, valuation of deferred tax assets, provisions, contingent liabilities and fair value
measurements of financial instruments as discussed below. Key source of estimation of uncertainty in respect of revenue
recoghition and employee benefits have been discussed in the respective policies.

Impairment

The Company estimates the value in use of the cash generating units (CGU) based on future cash flows after considering
current economic conditions and trends, estimates future operating results and growth rate and anticipated future economic
and regulatory conditions. The estimated cash flows are developed using internal forecasts. The cash flows are discounted
using a suitable discount rate to calculate the present value.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each reporting
period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation and amortization expense in future periods.

Valuation of deferred tax assets
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period.
Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as result of a past event and it is probable that the
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not
recognized in the financial statements. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including Discounted Cash Flow Model.
The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risks, credit risks
and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Company’s retirement benefit obligation is subject to a number of judgments including discount rates, inflation and salary
growth. Significant judgment is required when setting these criteria and a change in these assumptions would have a significant
impact on the amount recorded in the Company’s balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss. The Company sets these
judgements based on previous experience and third-party actuarial advice.

Property, plant and equipment

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits associated

with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. This recognition principle is applied to the costs

incurred initially to acquire an item of property, plant and equipment and to costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part

of, or service it. All other repair and maintenance costs, including regular servicing, are recognized in the.stﬁ\f&f’rﬁéﬁg*& profit
&
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(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities and Services Company Limited)
Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies

(e)

(f)

(g)

and loss as incurred. When a replacement occurs, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. Where an item of
Property, plant and equipment comprises major component having different useful lives, these components are accounted for
as separate items.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost/deemed cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Cost includes
all direct costs and expenditures incurred to bring the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Trial run
expenses (net of revenue) are capitalised. Borrowing costs incurred during the period of construction is capitalised as part of
cost of qualifying asset.

The gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Intangible assets

Software and License costs are included in the balance sheet as intangible assets when it is probable that associated future
economic benefits would flow to the Company. In this case they are measured initially at purchase cost and then amortised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. All other costs on software and license are expensed in the statement of
profit and loss as and when incurred.

Intangible assets include development of property of Mysore landfill project. The project was at Build, Operate and Transfer
(BOT) basis under the Public Private Partnership (PPP) Model for a period of 28.8 years. Based on the assessment of Appendix C
of Ind AS 115, all the expenditure incurred for Property, plant and Equipment’s have been reclassified as Intangible assets.

Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Depreciation or amortization is provided so as to write off, on a straight-line basis, the cost of property, plant and equipment
and other intangible assets. These charges are commenced from the dates the assets are available for their intended use and
are spread over their estimated useful economic lives. The estimated useful lives of assets and residual values are reviewed
regularly and, when necessary, revised. No further charge is provided in respect of assets that are fully written down but are
still in use. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of power business depreciation is provided on straight line
basis at the rates specified in Electricity Act, 2003

Depreciation on assets under construction commences only when the assets are ready for their intended use.

The estimated useful lives for the main categories of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets are:

Block of Assets Estimated useful life {years)
Buildings 10 - 60 Years
Plant and Machinery 2-30 Years
Office equipment 3-10 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 5-10 Years
Vehicles 8 Years
Wble/\ssets_ - - 5-10 Years
Assets covered under Electricity Act (life as prescribed under the Electricity Act) 3-19 Years

Assets value up to 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.
Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment-ane-intangible

assets to determine whether there is any indication that the carrying amount of those assets may not be e;gﬁxx"rlﬁg‘fe"_tih" ugh
f/ -'f ™ h
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TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities and Services Company Limited)
Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies

(h)

continuing use. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in order to determine the extent
of impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. An
impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as and when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized
as income immediately.

Leases
The Company as lessee

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components of the
contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components. The Company recognises right-of-
use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the
right-of-use asset measured at inception comprises of the amount of initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date.

The right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses,
if any and adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line
method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset.

Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indiration that their carrying amounts may nat he
recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Lease liability is measured at the present value of the [ease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the
lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If
that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. The lease liability is subsequently
remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications. The Group
recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Where the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability,
the Group recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in the statement of profit and loss.

Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liabilities are expensed to the statement of profit and
loss in the period in which the events or conditions which trigger those payments occur.

The Company accounts for sale and lease back transaction, recognising right of use assets and lease liability, measured in the
same way as other right of use assets and lease liability. Gain or loss on the sale transaction is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss.

The Company as lessor

Operating lease — Rental income from operating leases is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis
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(i)

1)

economic benefits from the leased asset is diminished. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Finance lease — When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the minimum lease payments is
recognized as a receivable. The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable is recognized
as unearned finance income. Lease income is recognized over the term of the lease using the net investment method before
tax, which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.

Investment in Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are carried at cost/deemed cost less accumulated impairment loss, if
any. Where an indication exists, the carrying amount of investment is assessed and an impairment provision is recognized, if
required immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of such investments, difference between the net disposal
proceeds and carrying amount is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or
financial liability. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit and loss are immediately recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest
income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

(i) Financial assets
Cash and Bank Balances
Cash and bank balances consist of:

Cash and cash equivalents - which includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term deposits which
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and have maturities
of less than one year from the date of such deposits. These balances with banks are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

Other bank balances - which includes balances and deposits with banks that are restricted for withdrawal and usage.
Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a
business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments

of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 3
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Financial asset not measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income is carried at fair value
through profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognized for financial assets measured at amortized cost and fair value through
other comprehensive income.

The Company recognizes life time expected credit losses for all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction.

For financial assets whose credit risk has not significantly increased since initial recognition, loss allowance equal to twelve
months expected credit losses is recognized. Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses is recognized if the
credit risk on the financial instruments has significantly increased since initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company
continues to recognize the financial asset and recognizes a collateralized borrowing of the proceeds received.

(ii) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered and the definitions of a financial liahility and an equity instrument,

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all its
liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at
amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is significant.

Interest-bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds {net of transaction costs) and
the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognized over the term of the borrowings in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
expire.
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(k)

U

(m)

(n)

Retirement benefit costs
Defined contribution plan

Payments to defined contribution plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. Payments made to state managed
retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contribution schemes where the Company’s obligations
under the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit retirement schemes the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method,
with actuarial valuation being carried out at each balance sheet date. Re-measurement gains and losses of the net defined
benefit liability/ (asset) are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. The service cost, net interest on the net
defined benefit liability/ (asset) is treated as a net expense within employment costs.

Past service cost is recognized as an expense when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs or when any related
restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognized, whichever is earlier.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined-benefit
obligation as reduced by the fair value plan assets.

Compensated absences

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employee renders the related service are recognized based on actuarial valuation at the present value of the obligation as on
the reporting date.

Inventories

Land are stated at the lower of cost and fair value. Costs comprise direct purchase cost, improvement cost that have been
incurred in bringing the land to their present condition.

Stores and spare parts are carried at weighted average cost. Provisions are made to cover slow moving and obsolete items
based on historical experience of utilization.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits which can be reliably
estimated. Each provision is based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are measured on discounted basis.

Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where:

(a) by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has
indicated to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities; and

(b) As a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge those
responsibilities.

Onerous contracts

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are
lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value
of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the cgnts
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(o)

(p)

(q)

Contribution from Customers

Contribution received from consumers towards installation of assets pertaining to distribution of power and water, are
credited to Deferred Income on capitalization of related assets. An amount in proportion to the depreciation charge for the
year on such assets is transferred to the statement of profit and loss.

Government grants

Government grants related to expenditure on property, plant and equipment are credited to the statement of profit and loss
over the useful lives of qualifying assets or other systematic basis representative of the pattern of fulfillment of obligations
associated with the grant received. Total grants received less the amounts credited to the statement of profit and loss at the
balance sheet date are included in the balance sheet as deferred income.

Insurance

Insurance premiums in respect of insurance placed and reinsurance premiums in respect of risks are charged to the statement
of profit and loss in the period to which they relate.

Taxation

Tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the statement of profit and loss because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted in
countries where the Company operates by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payabie or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial 'statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences. In contrast, deferred tax assets are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled, or the asset is
realized based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to cover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset to the extent that they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority and there
are legally enforceable rights to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities within that jurisdiction.

Current and deferred tax are recognized as an expense or income in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate
to items credited or debited either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the tax is also recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely to give
future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability. MAT is recognized as deferred
tax assets in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the future economic benefit
associated with the asset will be realized.
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(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities and Services Company Limited)
Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies

(s)

(t)

(u)

Revenue

The Company has applied the Standard Ind AS 115-Revenue from Contract with customer for the Annual reporting period
commencing April 1, 2018 which resulted in changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts recognized in the
financial statements.

The Company derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services over the period of time.
Revenue from Services and Construction Contracts
Revenue from providing services is recognized in the accounting period in which the services are rendered.

For fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognized based on the actual service provided to the end of the reporting period as a
proportion of the total services to be provided as the customer receives and uses the benefits simultaneously.

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances change. Any resulting
increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the circumstances
that give rise to the revision become known by management.

For contract of fixed expenditure plus margin, revenue is recognized based on the actual service provided on which
expenditure been incurred and in which agreed margin is added.

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services
to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does not adjust any of the
transaction prices for the time value of money.

Revenue from Sale of Power

Revenue from Sales of Power is recognized as per the prescribed rate approved by Jharkhand State Electricity Regulatory
Council (JSERC) for the units consumed by the consumer.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis taking into account the
amount outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial assets to that assets net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

The financial statements of the Company are presented in (), which are the functional currency of the Company and the
presentation currency for the financial statements.

In preparing the individual financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not translated.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for the intended use or sale.




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities and Services Company Limited)
Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(v) Earnings per Share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated using the weighted average number of shares and dilutive potential shares except where
the result would be anti-dilutive.

{(w) Segment Reporting

The Company identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns, internal organization,
management structure and the internal performance reporting systems. The accounting policies adopted for the segment
reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the Company.

(x) Recent Accounting Pronocuncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2020 on
24 July 2020 which are applicable for the periods beginning April 1, 2020. The amendments to Ind AS and the impact on the
financial statements of the Company are summarised below:

Ind AS 116, Leases

e Nature of amendment - Amendment to Ind AS 16 Leases provides lessees with an option to treat qualifying rent
concessions in the same way as they would if they were not lease modifications.

¢ Not applicable to the Company, since there are no modifications in the lease contracts.

Ind AS 103, Business Combinations

e Nature of amendment - The amended detfinition ot a business requires an acquisition to include an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The dcfinition of the term ‘outputs’ is
amended to focus on goods and services provided to customers, generating investment income and other income, and it
excludes returns in the form of lower costs and other economic benefits. The amendments will likely result in more
acquisitions being accounted for as asset acquisitions

e Not applicable to the Company since no such transactions during the year.

Ind AS 107, Financial Instruments: Disclosures and Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments

e Nature of amendment - Interest rate benchmark reform: These amendments provide certain reliefs in connection with
interest rate benchmark reform. The reliefs relate to hedge accounting and have the effect that IBOR reform should not
generally cause hedge accounting to terminate. However, any hedge ineffectiveness should continue to be recorded in the
income statement.

e Not applicable to the Company since no such transactions during the year.

Ind AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors and
consequential amendments to other Ind AS

e Nature of amendment — Amendments have been made to Ind AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and Ind AS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, which use a consistent definition of materiality
throughout Ind AS and the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting, to clarify when information is material and
incorporate some of the guidance in Ind AS 1 about immaterial information, ; '\f\‘l“_;-\~

K




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities and Services Company Limited)
Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies

e There is no significant impact on the financial statements.

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

e Nature of amendment —Entities that rely on the Framework in determining their accounting policies for transactions, events
or conditions that are not otherwise dealt with under the accounting standards will need to apply the revised Framework
from 1 April 2020. These entities will need to consider whether their accounting policies are still appropriate under the
revised Framework.

e There is no significant impact on the financial statements.
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TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities & Services Company Limited)
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements

Notes:
(a) '0'" indicates value below the rounding off conversion of X Lalchs.

03A - Right to use Property, Plant and Equipments X in Lakhs
i Freehold Property, Plant Office Total Right to
Particulars | ]
Land and Equipments  Equipments Use assets

Cost as at April 01, 2020 6 299 69 374
Additions < - - .
Disposals - - E -
Other re-classifications (Transfers in / out) - . - -
Cost as at March 31, 2021 6 299 69 374
Accumulated depreciation as at April 01, 2020 0 111 23 134
Charge for the year 0 114 23 137
Disposals . - - .
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2021 0 225 46 271
Net Block as at March 31, 2021 6 74 23 103
Additions relating to transition under Ind AS 116 - 171 69 240
Additions - 128 - 128
Disposals = - - .
Other re-classifications (Transfers in / out) 6 - - 6
Cost as at March 31, 2020 6 299 69 374
Charge for the year 0 111 23 134
Disposals - - - -
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2020 0 111 23 134
Net Block as at March 31, 2020 6 188 46 240




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Farmerly - Jamshedpur Utilities & Services Company Limited)
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements

04 - Equity accounted investments

Unquoted Investment in Joint Ventures As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020
(X in Lakhs)

(X in Lakhs)

Cost at beginning of year 1,368
Movement during the year -
Cost at end of year 1,368
Provision at beginning of year

Mavement during the year 3
Provision at end of year 3
Carrying value at end of year 1,365

Notes:

Name of the joint venture Principal Activity

1,368

1,368

1,368

(a) Details of Entities material joint venture at the end of the reporting year is as follows:

Place of incorporation
and principal place of

Proportlon of ownership interest and
voting right held by the entity.

business

25,497 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
[March 31, 2020: 25,497 Equity shares of Rs. 10
each]

Economic Zone (SEZ) at
Adityapur, Jamshedpur.

website.

05 - Investments in subsidiaries

Unquoted Investment in subsidiary company As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 2020
Naba Diganta Water Management Limited BOT projects and PPP West Bengal, India 74% 74%
1,36,53,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each Model comprising of
[March 31, 2020: 1,36,53,000 Equity shares of integrated water supply
Rs. 10 each} system and sewerage
system.
SEZ Adityapur Limited Develop the Special Jharkhand, India 51% 51%

During the year, Company has applied for strike off SEZ Adityapur Limited on October 16, 2020 which is under process of strike off as per MCA

As at March 31, 2020
(X in Lakhs)

(Rin Lakhs)
Cost at beginning of year 2,066
Movement during the year -
Cost at end of year 2,066
Provision at beginning of year 1,666
Movement during the year =
Provision at end of year 1,666

Carrying value at end of year 400

Name of the subsidiary Principal Activity

2,066

2,066
1,666
1,666

400

Place of incorporation
and principal place of

Proportion of ownership interest and
voting right held by the entity.

40,00,006 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
[March 31, 2020: 40,00,006 Equity shares of Rs.
10 each]

outsourcing/
consultancy services

business As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 2020
|Haldia Water Management Limited BOT projects and O&M West Bengal, India 60% 60%
1,66,64,210 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each of the water treatment
[March 31, 2020: 1,66,64,210 Equity shares of facilities in Haldia region.
Rs. 10 each]
Kalimati Global Shared Services Limited Business of providing West Bengal, India 100% 100%




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Farmerly - Jamshedpur Utilities & Services Company Limited)
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements

106 - Trade Recelvables

Particulars

As at March 31, 2021 (X In Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2020 (% in Lakhs)

Notes:
(a) Ageing of trade receivables and credit risk arising there from is as below:

As at March 31, 2021 (X in Lakhs)

Non Current Current Total Non Current Current Total
{a) Secured, Considered good - 5,224 5,224 - 2,504 2,504
{b) Unsecured, Considered good 2,186 14,342 16,528 2,186 17,872 20,058
(e} Unsecured, Considered Doubllul 1,571 941 2,512 1,571 1,228 2,799
Less: Allowance tor Credit losses 1,571 941 2,512 1,571 1,228 2,799
2,186 19,566 21,752 2,186 20,376 22,562

As at March 31, 2020 (X in Lakhs)

the fair value of trade receivables (after allowance for credit losses).

of the total balance of Trade Receivables.

(c) Movement in Allowance for Credit Losses:

|d) Ihere are no outstanding debts due from directors or other officers of the company.

07 - Other financlal Assets

As at March 31, As at March 31,
Partlculars 2021 2020
{X In Lakhs) (X in Lakhs)
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,799 3,589
Provision created during the year 90 802
Provisions reversed during the year (368) (152)
Provision for bad & doubtful debts written back {9) (1,440)
|Balance at the end of the year 2,512 2,799

Particulars Gross Credit Risk  Allowance for Net Credit Risk  Gross Credit Rlsk  Allowance for Net Credit Risk
Credit loss Credit {oss

Amount not yet due 11,880 11,880 11,112 11,112
One month overdue 2,032 2,032 3,978 3,978
Two months overdue 1,127 1,127 1,606 - 1,606
Three months overdue 533 533 831 831
Between three to six months overdue 1,221 - 1,221 507 - 507
Greater than six months overdue 7,471 2,512 4,959 7,327 2,799 4,528
24,264 2,512 21,752 25,361 2,799 22,562

{bjThe Company considers its maximum exposure to credit risk with respect to customers As at March 31, 2021 to be X 21,752 Lakhs {March 31, 2020: % 22,562 Lakhs), which is

QOf the trade receivable balance As at March 31,2021 X 9,457 Lakhs (As at March 31, 2020 of ® 11,836 Lakhs) is due from Tata Steel Limited the holding company, and X 2,186
Lakhs {As at March 31, 2020 of % 2,186 Lakhs) is due from Mysore city corporation, the entities largest customers. There are no other customers who represents more than 10%

*Earmarked bank balances represent deposits not due for realisation within 12 months from the balance sheet date. These are held against issue of bank

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 (X in Lakhs) As at March 31, 2020 (X In Lakhs)
Non Current Current Total Non Current Current Total

(a) Contract assets 98 16,669 16,767 202 14,012 14,214
(b) Security deposits 243 7 250 - 250 250
(c) Loans and advances to group companies - 4,620 4,620 - 4,617 4,617
{d) Earmarked Non-current Cash and bank balances* 544 - 544 68 - 68
Gross other financial assets 885 21,296 22,181 270 18,879 19,149
Less: Provision for bad & doubtful other financial assets
(a) Contract assets - - - - -
{b) Security deposits - - - - - -
{c} Loans and advances to group companies - 4,620 4,620 - 4,617 4,617
(d) Earmarked Non-current Cash and bank balances - - - - . -
Total provision for bad & doubtful other financlal assets - 4,620 4,620 - 4,617 4,617
Net other financlal assets 885 16,676 17,561 270 14,262 14,532
Classification of other financlal assets
Secured, considered good - - - - - -
Unsetured, considered good 885 16,676 17,561 270 14,262 14,532
Doubtful - 4,620 4,620 - 4,617 4,617
Gross other financlal assets 885 21,296 22,181 270 18,879 19,149
Notes:




Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements

08 - Other non-financial assets

TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utllities & Services Company Limited)

|Notes:

109 - Inventorles

INotes:

10 - Current Investments
Partlculars

Unquoted Investments
(a) Investment in mutual funds

Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund
SBI Liquid Fund
UTI Liquid Cash Plan
L&T Liguid Fund
HDFC Liquid Fund
Tata Liquid Fund
IDFC Cash Fund

Total Current Investments

As at March 31,
2021
(% In Lakhs)

As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2021 2020
(% In Lakhs) (% In Lakhs)
Inventorjes
- Land, plots and construction in progress 7,772 7,622
- Stores & Spares 1,268 1,678
Total Inventories 9,040 9,300

As at March 31,
2020
(% In Lakhs)

402
502
200
501
300
500
2,907

=
Utllilig

|a) Other loans and advances includes loans given to Key managerial personnel agreegates to X 0.24 Lakhs As at March 31, 2021 {March 31, 2020: R 0.40 Lakhs).

(a) The value of stores and spares above is stated after impairment of % 576 Lakhs (March 31, 2020: X 642 Lakhs) for provision for slow moving and obsolete item.

{b) Land, plots and construction in progress is recognised as cost or fair value whichever is lower. During the year ended March 31, 2021, Lands was valued from a certified
valuer, Fair value of the land as per the valuation report is % 20,806 Lakhs. Hence land has been recognised at cost.

o
S e

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 (X in Lakhs) As at March 31, 2020 (X In Lakhs})
Non Current Current Total Non Current Current Total

(a) Capital advances 2 2 9 9
(b} Advance with public bodies 2,1mM 1,391 3,492 2,10 1,492 3,593
(c) Other loans and advances 9 2,590 2,599 10 3,218 3,228
(Gross non financlal assets 2,112 3,981 6,093 2,120 4,710 6,830
Less: Provision for bad & doubtful non financial assets

{a) Capital advances - - - -
{b) Advance with public bodies 1,741 - 1,741 1,474 1,474
(c) Other loans and advances - 535 535 - 537 537
Total provision for bad & doubtful non financial assets 1,741 535 2,276 1,474 537 2,011
| Total other non financlal assets 371 3,446 3,817 646 4,173 4,819
Classification of other non-financlal assets

Secured, considered good = - . - - -
Unsecured, considered good 371 3,446 3,817 646 4,173 4,819
Doubtful 1,741 535 2,276 1,474 537 2,011
Gross other non-financial assets 2,112 3,981 6,093 2,120 4,710 6,830




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities & Services Company Limited)
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements

11 - Cash and Bank Balances

. As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars

(X in Lakhs) (X in Lakhs)
Cash and cash equivalents
(a) Cash on hand 4 8
(b) Cheques, drafts on hand 72
(c) Unrestricted balances in current accounts 1,159 2,344
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,235 2,352
Other Balance with Banks
(a) Earmarked balances with banks 1,262 3,772
(i) In Current Account B -
(ii) In Deposit Account 1,262 3,772
Total cash and bank balances 2,497 6,124
Notes:

(a) Earmarked cash and bank balances primarily represents balances held against issue of bank guarantee and power business.

12 - Share Capital

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
(X in Lakhs) (X in Lakhs)

Authorised :

7,50,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 7,50,000 3,120

(March 31,2020: 3,12,00,000 Equity Shares of X 10 each)

Issued , Subscribed and Fully Paid up :

24,350,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 2,435 2,435
(March 31,2020: 24,350,000 Equity Shares of X 10 each)

Notes:

{a) Reconcilation of the number of Equity shares and the amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting
period is as below:

Particulars Number of Shares Share Capital
(X in Lakhs)
Balance at March 31, 2019 2,43,50,000 2,435
Shares issued during the year - -
Balance at March 31, 2020 2,43,50,000 2,435
Shares issued during the year - -
Balance at March 31, 2021 2,43,50,000 2,435

(a) Of the above 24,349,940 Equity Shares (As at March 31,2020: 24,349,940 Equity Shares) are held by Tata Steel Limited, the
holding Company.

(b) The rights, powers and preferences relating to each class of share capital and the qualifications, limitations and restrictions
thereof are contained in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.

{c) In respect of every equity share, voting rights shall be in same proportion as the capital paid up on such egitty share bears
to the total paid up capital of the company.

(d) The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuri
General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. e
{e) In the event of liquidation, the shareholders of Equity Shares are eligible to receive the remaining assets of _':‘__'
after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(f) During the year, Company has increased its authorised Share Capital from X 3,120 Lakhs to X 7,50,000 Lakhs.

L

A




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
{Farmerly - Jamshedpur Utilities & Services Company Limited)

Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements

13 - Borrowings

Partlculars

{a) Lease Liabilities
Total Borrowing

Notes:

Non Current

As at March 31, 2021 (X in Lakhs)

Current
maturities of
Long-term *

94
94

Current

Total

94
94

(a) * Current maturities of long-term borrowings is reported as a part of other current liabilities (Refer note no - 14).

14 - Other financial liabllities

Particulars

(a} Current maturlties of Lease liabilities
(b} Creditors for other liabilities
(i} Creditors for capital supplies/services
{ii) Other credit balances
- Security and other deposits
- Contribution for capital expenditure
- Contract Liability
- Other credit balances
Total Other financial llabilities

15 - Provistons
Particulars

{a) Provision for employee benefits
(1) Long-term Employee Benefits
(2) Provision for employee separation
compensation
(3} Employee redundancy provision
{t1) Other Provisions

(1) Provision for Performance guarantee

(?) Provision for estimated loss on
contracts

(3) Provisions for Liquidated Damages
Total Provisions

Nntes-

Non Current

7,832

825

8,657

Current
94
421
570
811

790

2,992

Total

94

421

8,402
811
1,615
306
11,649

As at March 31, 2021 (% in Lakhs)

Non Current

3,514

914

223

354

162
5,167

(a) The details of movement in other provisions is as below:

Particulars

Balance at March 31,2019

Provision created during the year
Provisions reversed/utilised during the year
Balance at March 31, 2020

Provision created during the year
Provisions reversed/utilised during the year
|Balance at March 31, 2021

Performance
Guarantee

186
(47)
139
(16)

123

Current

243
88

123
176

314
1,667

Estimated loss
on contracts

359
197
(&)
555
0
(25)
530

Total

4,237
1,157

311

123
530

476
6,834

% in Lakhs
Liquldated
Damages

816
126
(447)
495
13
(32)
476

Non Current

78
78

As at March 31, 2020 (R in Lakhs)

Current
maturitles of
Long-term *

151
151

As at March 31, 2020 (X In Lakhs)

Non Current Current Total
- 151 151
556 556
7,635 606 8,241
- 1,661 1,661
825 625 1,450
= 284 284
8,460 3,883 12,343

As at March 31, 2020 (X in Lakhs}

Non Current Current Total
3,569 584 4,153
1,052 269 1,321
202 80 282
- 139 139
354 201 555
162 333 495
5,339 1,606 6,945

Current

Total

229
229
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16 - Retirement benefit obligations

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 (X In Lakhs) As at March 31, 2020 {X in Lakhs)
Non Current Current Total Non Current Current Total
(a) Retiring Gratuity 520 - 520 1,017 - 1,017
(b} Other Defined Benefit Provisions 258 13 271 258 11 269
Total Reti benefit obligati 778 13 791 1,275 11 1,286
17 - Deferred Income
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 (X in Lakhs) As at March 31, 2020 (X in Lakhs)
Non Current Current Total Non Current Current Total
{a) Grants for property, plant & equipment 213 54 267 266 54 320
(b} Other deferred income 8,622 809 9,431 8,013 722 8,735
Total Deferred income 8,835 863 9,698 8,279 776 9,055
18 - Other llabilities
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 (X in Lakhs) As at March 31, 2020 (X in Lakhs)
Non Current Current Total Non Current Current Total
{a) Advances received from customers - 2,778 2,778 - 4,125 4,125
{b) Employee recoveries and employer contributions - 261 261 - 268 268
(c) Statutory Dues {GST, Excise duty, service tax, TDS, etc) = 422 422 - 1,113 1,113
(d) Other credit balances 2,055 2,055 - 4,094 4,094
Total Other liabilities - 5,516 5,516 - 9,600 9,600
19 - Trade Payables
As at March 31, 2021 (X in Lakhs) As at March 31, 2020 (X in Lakhs)
Particulars Non Current Current Total Non Current Current Total
(a) Creditors for supplies / services
(i) Total outstanding due of micro and small enterprises
- 9,508 9,508 - 1,11 1,115
(Refer note 26F). ! ! 15 !
(i) Total outstanding due other than (a}{i) above 92 17,228 17,320 189 26,145 26,334
(b) Creditors for accrued wages and salaries 59 7,291 7,350 56 6,204 6,260
Total Trade Payables 151 34,027 34,178 245 33,464 33,709

R

&

3
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{Formerly - lJamshedpur Utilities & Services Company Limited)
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20 - Revenue from Operations

For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars (X in Lakhs) (X in Lakhs)
(a) Service Income 43,741 54,327
(b) Income From Construction Activities 15,190 20,105
(c) Sale of Power 35,698 32,572
Total Revenue from Operations 94,629 1,07,004
21 - Other Income
Particulars
(a) Interest income 248 373
l(b) Net Gain / (Loss} on sale of investments 16 121
(c) FV Changes on non-derivative FA/FL 7 1
{d) Liability no longer required written back 162 73
(e) Other miscellaneous income 470 551
(f) Profit/(Loss) on sale of Capital Assets 1 -
(g) Dividend Income 121 50
Total Other Income 1,025 1,169
22 - Direct Expenses
Particulars
(a) Stores and spares consumed 8,586 13,564
(b) Fuel oil consumed 269 380
(c) Purchase of power 30,234 26,969
(d) Cost of services 30,396 39,200
Total Direct Expenses 69,485 80,113
23 - Employee Benefit Expenses
|Particulars
(a) Salaries and wages, including bonus 13,524 14,417
(b) Contribution to provident and other funds
(1) Provident Fund and Employee Pension Scheme 842 859
(2) Superannuation Fund and other fund 176 186
(3) Gratuity 595 388
(c) Staff welfare expenses 469 629
Total Employee Benefit Expenses 15,606 16,479

Kharsawa power project.

personnel:
Particulars
(a) Short term employee benefits
(b} Long term employee benefits

Salary and wages amounting to X 12 Lakhs (March 31, 2020: X 53 Lakhs) have been capitalised during the year for Saraikela

The company has recognised, in the statement of profit and loss for the current period, an amount of X 301 Lakhs (March
31, 2020: X 267 Lakhs) as expenses under the following kinds of employee benefits with respect to Key managerial




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
\(Formetly - Jamshedpur Utilities & Services Company Limited)
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24 - Finance Cost

For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Particulars (X in Lakhs) (X in Lakhs)
(a) Interest expense

(1) Interest Debentures and Fixed Loans - 2

(2) Interest on Others 627 721
{b) Finance charges on leases 17 27
Total Finance Cost 644 750
25 - Other Expenses
Particulars
(a) Repairs to plant and machinery 316 325
(b) Rent 154 115
(c) Rates and taxes 567 202
{d) Insurance 72 71
(e) Provisions for diminution in the value of investments 3 -
{f) Provisions for doubtful debts and advances (10) 1,221

(1) Allowance for credit loss (279) 650

(2) Provision for doubtful advances 269 571

(3) Bad debts and advances written off 9 1,821

(4) Provision for bad & doubtful debts and advances written back (9) (1,821)
(g) Payment to auditors [Excluding GST of X 3 Lakhs (March 31,2020

GST of X 4 Lakhs)]

(1) As Auditors 13 9

(2) For Taxatlon matters 2 2

(3) For Other services 2 6

(4) Auditors out-of-pocket expenses 2 3
(h) Legal and other professional fees 124 322
(1) Advertisement, Promotion & Selling Expenses 45 38
(j) Travelling Fxpenses 575 754
(k) Miscellaneous expenses 1,036 671
Total Other Expenses 2,901 3,739

Notes:

(a)As per the Companies Act, 2013, amount required to be spent by the Company on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
activities was X 123 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2021 (2019-20: X 122 Lakhs). Amount unspent for the year ended
March 31, 2020 X 23 Lakhs which has been spent in the year ended March 31, 2021.

(b) During the year ended March 31, 2021, in respect of CSR activities the Company incurred revenue expenditure which
was recognised in the statement of profit and loss for amount amounting to X 146 lakhs [X 95 lakhs has been paid in cash
and X 51 lakhs is yet to be paid]. The amounts spent relates to purpose other than construction or acquisition of any asset.
There was no amount unspent for year ended March 31, 2021 and the Company does not propose to carry forward any
amount spent beyond the statutory requirement.

During the year ended March 31, 2020, similar expense incurred was X 99 lakhs [X 85 lakhs was paid in cash and X 14 lakhs
was unpaid].

(c) Other expenses amounting to Nil (March 31, 2020: X 5 Lakhs) have been capitalised during the year for Saraikela
Kharsawa power project and X 135 Lakhs (March 31, 2020: X 444 Lakhs) have been taken to inventory for real estate
project.




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilitles & Services Company Limited)
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements

26(A): Financlal instruments

(1) Capltal Management

The Company’s capital management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of long-term and short-term goals of the
Company.

The Company determines the amount of capital required based on annual operating plans and other strategic investment plans. The funding needs are met
through equity, cash generated from operations, other long-term/short-term borrowings. The Company's policy is aimed at combination of short-term and
long-term borrowings.

The Company monitors the capital structure based on net debt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of the Company. Net debt
includes interest bearing borrowings less cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances (including non-current earmarked balances) and current
investments,

Equity Share Capital 2,435 2,435
Other Equity 16,961 13,948
Total Equlty (A} 19,396 16,383
Short term Borrowings - -

Current Maturity of Lease liabilities 94 151
Gross Debts (B) 94 151
Total Capital (A+B) 19,490 16,534
Gross debts as above 94 151
Less: Current Investments 2,907 1,101
Less: Cash and bank balances 2,497 6,124
Less: Other Bank balances (Non current Earmarked balances) 544 68
Net Debts {C) (5,854) (7,142)
Net Debts to Equlty {0.33) {0.47)

Net debt to equity as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 has been computed based on average equity.

(1) Categorles of financlal Instruments

Financlal assets
Measured at fair value through Statement of profit and loss {[VTPL)
{a) Mandatorily measured:

{1) InvasLenenls In rutual funds 2,907 1,101
Measured at Amortized cost
(a) Cash and bank balances 2,497 6,124
(b) Trade Receivables 21,752 22,562
(c} Other financial assets 17,561 14,532
(d) Investments in subsidiaries 400 400

Financial Liabilities
Measured at Amortized cost

{a) Borrowings - 78
(b) Trade payables 34,178 33,709
(c) Other financial liabilities 11,649 12,343

Investments in mutual funds are mandatorily classified as fair value through statement of profit and loss.
At the end of the reporting period, there are no significant concentrations of credit risk for financial assets designated at Fair Value through Profit & Loss
(FVTPL). The carrying amount reflected ahove represents the entities maximum exposure to credit risk for such financial assets.

(i1} Falr Value Measurement

The short term financial assets and liabilities are stated at amortized cost which is approximately to their fair values.
Investments carried at their fair values, are generally based on market quotations. The fair value in respect of the unquoted equity instruments cannot be
reliably measured.

Management uses its best judgment in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there are inherent limitations in any estimation
technique. Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair value estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that
the Company could have realized or paid in sale transactions as of respective dates. As such, fair value of financial instruments subsequent to the reporting
dates may be different from the amounts reported at each reporting date.
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The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to
Level 3, as described below:

Quoted prices In an actlve market (Level 1): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities that are measured by reference to quoted prices
{unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This category consists of quoted equity shares and mutual fund investments.

Valuation techniques with observable Inputs (Level 2): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than
quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly {i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This
level of hierarchy includes Group’s over-the-counter (OTC) derivative contracts.

Valuation techniques with signlficant unobservable Inputs (Level 3): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs
that are not based on observable market data {(unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model did not based
on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available
market data. This level includes investment in unquoted equity shares.

Investment in mutual funds is measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives information about how the fair values are
determined.

NAV's in the

Investments in Mutual funds 2,907 1,101 Level 1 i
active market.

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.
(v) Financlal Risk management

In the course of its business, the Company is exposed primarily to interest rate and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of its financial
instruments. The Company has a risk management policy which not only covers the foreign exchange risks but also other risk associated with financial assets
and liabilities such as interest rate risk and credit risk. The risk management aims at:

1. Create a stable business planning environment by reducing the impact of interest rate fluctuation on the Company's business plan.

2. Achieve greater predictability to earnings by determining the financial value of the expected earnings in advance.

Market Risk:

Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realizable fair values or in future cash flows that may resuit from a change in the price of a financial
instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, liquidity and other
market changes. Future specific market movements cannot be normally predicted with reasonable accuracy.

Interest rate Risk:

Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rates. Any movement in the reference rates could have an
impact on the Company’s cash flows as well as costs.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for financial assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period. For
financial assets/liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the entities profit for the year ended March 31, 2021
would increase/decrease by Nil. {For the year ended March 31, 2020: by Nil). This is mainly on account of Company’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable rate borrowing.

Credlt rlsk management:

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to the contractual terms or obligations. Credit risk
encompasses both the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration risks. Financial instruments that are
subject to credit risk and concentration thereof principally consist of trade receivables, loan receivables, and investments, cash and cash equivalents, None
of the financial instruments of the Company results in material concentration of credit risk.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of account receivables and
where appropriate, provision has been considered in the books.

Apart from Tata Steel Limited, the parent Company the entity does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty. Concentration of
credit risk related to Tata steel Limited is approx. 39.74% (As on 31st March 2020: 47.89%) of the gross trade receivables. Concentration of credit risk of
Mysore City Corporation, Company’s second largest customer is approx. 15.48% (As on 31st March 2020: 14.81%). Since the Mysore city corporation is a
government organization the credit risk is low. Concentration of credit risk to any other counterparty did not exceed 10% of gross trade receivables at any
time during the year.
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Liquidity risk management:

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient
liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements.

The entity has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. The entity invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and
liquid and liquid plus schemes of mutual funds, which carry no/low mark to market risk.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments.

{% In Lakhs)
March 31, 2021
Non-derivatlve financial llabllitles
Borrowings
{i) Princlpal 94 94 94
{ii) Interest - - - -
Trade payables 34,178 34,178 34,027 151 .
Other financial liabilities 11,555 11,555 2,898 825 7,832
45,827 45,827 37,019 976 7,832
March 31, 2020
Non-derlvative financlal llabllitles
Borrowings
(i) Principal 229 229 151 78
{ii) Interest . . . .
Trade payables 33,709 33,709 33,464 245 .
Other financial liabilities 12,191 12,191 3,731 825 7,635
46,129 46,129 37,346 1,148 7,635
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26(B): Employee Benefits
(i} Defined Contribution Plans

The Company participates in a number of defined contribution plans on behalf of relevant personnel. Any expense recognized in relation to these
schemes represents the value of contributions payable during the period by them at rates specified by the rules of those plans. The only amounts
included in the balance sheet are those relating to the prior months contributions that were not due to be paid until after the end of the reporting period.

The Company has recognized, in the profit and loss account for the current period, an amount of X 1,018 Lakhs (March 31, 2020: 1,045 Lakhs) as
expenses under the following defined contribution plans:

(a) |Provident Fund 656 669
(b} |Employees Pension Scheme 186 190
{c) |TISCO Employees Pension Scheme 61 64
(d) |Superannuation Fund 115 122

Total Benefit (Contribution) 1,018 1,045

The major defined contribution plans operated by Company are as below:

Provident fund:

The Company provide provident fund benefit for eligible employee as per applicable regulation where both employees and the Company make monthly
contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employee’s salary.

The contributions, as specified under the law, are made to the provident fund and pension fund set up as an irrevocable trust by the Company or to
respective Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and the Central Provident Fund under the State Pension scheme.

Superannuation fund:

The Company in India has a superannuation plan. Employees who are members of the defined benefit superannuation plan are entitled to benefits
depending on the years of service and salary drawn.

Separate irrevocable trusts are maintained for employees covered and entitled to benefits. The Company contributes up to 15% or X 1.50 Lakhs
whichever is lower, of the eligible employee’s salary to the trust every year. Such contributions are recognized as an expense when incurred. The
Company has no further obligation beyond this contribution.

{ii) Defined benefit plans

The Company operates post retirement defined benefit plans as follows:
a) Funded
i. Post Retirement Gratuity
b) Unfunded
i. Farewell Gifts
ii. Packing and Transportation benefit

Post Retirement Gratuity:

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan provides for a lump-sum
payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 to 30 days
salary payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The Company makes annual contributions to
gratuity funds established as trusts or insurance companies. Company's liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on an actuarial valuation,
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The following table sets out the amounts recognized in the financial statements for the retiring gratuity plans in respect of the Company:

a. |Obligation as at the beginning of the year 7,063 6,498
b. |Current service cost 562 374
c. |Interest cost 437 454
d. |Re-measurement (gains)/losses
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumption - 442
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in experience adjustments (40) 208
e. |Benefits paid (676) (913)
Obligation as at the end of the year 7,346 7,063

a. |Fair value of plan assets as at beginning of the year 6,046 6,133
b. |Interestincome 404 440
Re-measurement gains/(losses)
Return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest expense) 35 21
Employers' Contributions 1,016 365
Benefits paid (676) (913)

Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year

6,825

6,046

a. |Fair value of plan assets as at beginning/end of the year (6,825) (6,046)
b. |Present value of obligation as at the beginning/end of the year 7,346 7,063
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 520 1,017

a. |Service cost
(i) Current service cost 562 374
(ii) Past Service Cost - -

b. [Net interest expense 33 14
Defined benefit costs recorded in profit and loss 595 388

c. |The return on plan assets (greater/(less) than discount rate) (35) (21)

d. |Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumption - 442
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in experience adjustments (40) 208
Defined benefit costs recorded in Other comprehensive income (75) 629
Total of defined benefit costs 520 1,017

The assumptions used in accounting for the retiring gratuity plans are set out below:

a. |Discount rate (per annum) 6.50% 6.50%
Rate of escalation in salary (per annum)
OPR 10.00% 10.00%
NOPR 7.50% 7.50%

The defined benefit plans expose the Company to a number of actuarial risks as below:

'
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Investment risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to government/high
quality bond yields; if the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

Interest risk: A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the
plan’s debt investments.

Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase
in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Longevity risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants
both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at March 31, 2021 is 7 years (March 31, 2020: 7 years).
The Company expects to contribute X 520 Lakhs to the funded retiring gratuity plans in financial year 2022.

The fair value of Company's plan asset as of March 31, 2021 and 2020 by category are as follows:

GOl Securities (Central and State) 16.08% 16.03%
High Quality Corporate Bonds (Including Public Sector Bonds) 6.12% 7.15%
Cash & Scheme of Insurance - conventional products 77.80% 76.82%

100.00% 100.00%

The table below outlines the effect on the service cost, the interest cost and the defined benefit obligation in the event of a decrease/increase of 1% in
the assumed rate of discount rate, salary escalation and inflation cost:

As at March 31,2021

Discount rate Increase by 1%, |Decrease by 7%,

decrease by 1%

Increase by 6%

Salary escalation

Increase by 1%,
decrease by 1%

Increase by 7%,
decrease by 7%

As at March 31,2020

Discount rate

Increase by 1%,
decrease by 1%

Decrease by 6%,
increase by 7%

Salary escalation

Increase by 1%,
decrease by 1%

Increase by 7%,
decrease by 6%

The above sensitivities may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Packaging & Transportation Benefit Scheme:
The Packaging & Transportation Benefit Scheme is a Defined Benefit Plan that provides a benefit upon meeting the requisite service eligibility criteria.
Packing & transportation is given to officers for shifting their household materials which is up to 1.5 times of their last drawn Salary.

Farewell Gift Benefit Scheme:

The Farewell Gift Benefit Scheme is a Defined Benefit Plan that provides a benefit upon meeting the requisite service eligibility criteria. The Farewell
Benefit is given to retiring employees in terms of gift coupons as per the category, i.e. X 5000/- to all NOPRs, X 7000/- to OPR of 'JMO1 to JMO7' and X
5000/- to other OPR.

v A
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a. |Obligation as at the beginning of the year 207 178
b. |Current service cost 18 15
¢. |Interest cost 13 13
d. |Re-measurement (gains)/losses
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumption - 18
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in experience adjustments (28) (11)
e. |Benefits paid (4) (6)
Obligation as at the end of the year 206 207

a. |Service cost
(i) Current service cost 18 15
b. |Net interest expense 13 13
Defined benefit costs recorded in profit and loss 31 28
c. |Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumption - 18
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in experience adjustments (28) (11)
Defined benefit costs recorded in Other comprehensive income (28) 7
Total of defined benefit costs 3 35
The assumptions used in accounting for the other defined benefit plans are set out below:
a. |Discount rate (per annum) 6.50% 6.50%
b. |Rate of escalation in salary {per annum)
OPR 10.00% 10.00%
NOPR 7.50% 7.50%

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at March 31, 2021 is 6 years (March 31, 2020: 6 years) for Farewell Gift Benefit and
10 years (March 31, 2020: 10 years) for Packing & Transportation Benefit.

The table below outlines the effect on the service cost, the interest cost and the defined benefit obligation in the event of a decrease/ increase of 1% in
the assumed rate of discount rate, salary escalation and inflation cost:

As at March 31,2021

Farewell Gift: Decrease by 6% and
Increase by 6%.

Packing & Transportation: Decrease
by 10% and Increase by 9%.

Packing & Transportation: Increase
by 10% and Decrease by 9%.

— =

Increase by 1%,
decrease by 1%

Discount rate

Increase by 1%,

Salary escalation
Y decrease by 1%
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As at March 31,2020

Discount rate

Increase by 1%,
decrease by 1%

Farewell Gift: Decrease by 6% and
Increase by 6%.

Packing & Transportation: Decrease
by 9% and Increase by 10%.

Salary escalation

Increase by 1%,
decrease by 1%

Packing & Transportation: Increase
by 10% and Decrease by 9%.

The above sensitivities may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions

would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
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26(C): Information about Operating segments

(% in Lakhs)

Total Revenue 43,741 35,698 15,190 - 94,629

54,327 32,572 20,105 - 1,07,004

Segment Results before finance cost and taxes. 5,665 1,568 1,593 - 8,826

5,850 2,046 660 - 8,556

Unallocated Corporate Expenses {net off other Income) 3,574 3,574

3,826 3,826

Finance Costs {net of income) 7 620 6 (237) 396

8 676 20 (326) 378

Profit before taxes and exceptional items including 4,856

other comprehensive income 4,352
Exceptional Items -

Taxes 1,331

1,507

Profit after taxes (Total Comprehensive Income of the 3,525

year) 2,845

Segment assets 19,918 27,290 19,058 17,484 83,750

21,293 23,558 21,856 18,311 85,018

Segment Liabilities 24,398 22,541 17,174 4,553 68,666

26,612 23,094 19,015 4,295 73,016

Segment assets capitalized during the period. 175 2,593 37 9 2,814

370 5,475 87 - 5,932

Segment depreciation 230 1,676 249 110 2,265

214 1,521 266 103 2,104

Non-cash expenses other than depreciation - - (325) - (325)

. 583 388 971

Notes:

(i) The Company has disclosed business segment as the primary segment. There is no significant difference in the business conditions prevailing in various states in
India, where the company has its operations. There are no sales made by the company to external customers outside India. Consequently, there is no need for separate

disclosure for geographical segment as required under IND AS-108” Operating Segment”.

(i) Segment Revenue, Segment Results, Segment Assets and Segment Liabilities include the respective amounts identifiable to each of the segments as also amounts
allocated on a reasonable basis. Assets and Liabilities that cannot be allocated between the segments are shown as unallocated corporate assets and liabilities

respectively.

(iii} Total un-allocable assets exclude:

Investments in Subsidiary 400 400
Equity Accounted Investments 1,365 1,368
Deferred Tax assets 2,547 2,613
Total 4,312 4,381

(iv) Previous year figures are in italics.




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
{Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities & Services Company Limited)
Notes Forming Part of Financlal Statements

26(D): Related party transactions

List of related Parties and relationships:

Tata Sons Limited Promotor of HoldIng Company
Tata Steel Limited Holding Company

Adityapur Toll Bridge Company Limited
Tayo Rolls Limited

The Indlan Steel and Wire Products Limited
Tata Pigments Limited

Tinplate Company of India Limited

Tata Metaliks DI Pipes Limited

Tata Steel Long Products Limited

Fellow subsidiaries

~

Tata Steel Foundation
Jamshedpur Football and Sporting Private Limited
Tata Steel Bhushan Steel Limited

Tata Steel Downstream Products Limited J

Tata Blue Scope Steel limited N\

MlJunction Services Limited |

Jamipol ltd \

TM Internatlonal Logistics Limited > loint Venture of Holding Company

lamshedpur Continuous Annealing & Processing Company
Private Limited

Nicco Jubilee Park Limited /

Haldia Water Management Limlited Subsidiaries

Kalimati Global Shared Services Limited Subsidiaries

Nabadiganta Water Management Ltd, Joint Ventures

SEZ Adityapur Limited Joint Ventures

Mr. Tarun Kumar Daga Key Managerial Personnel

{1} Transactions with related parties in the narmal course of business are as follows:
(% in Lakhs)

Purchase of Power = 14,964 - = 2 = :

- (15,254) - : - . .

Purchase of Goods/Stores - 132 316 = - = "

(611) (2,583) - = : -

Sale of Power - ELE 6 - - = =

x {639) (12) - : =

Sale of Fixed Assets - z = = = =

) ] = 58,841 1,382 1 ; 28 N
Rendering of services

- (72,687) (2,322) (10) - (9) -

. . 281 781 43 6 - = =
Receiving of services

{171) {891) (44) {4)




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
{Formerly - Jamshedpur Utllities & Services Company Limited)
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements

(% in Lakhs)
Interest Expenses = 3 g = = =
= {0) (0) =
Interest Income = = g = - =
R = - 3 0 -
Expenses incurred
- (1) (2) -
- N - - - 2 -
Rent Expenses
= (2)
Unsecured advances/ - 148 - - - = -
deposits accepted (901) {330} - -
- 511 - - = - -
Dividend paid
P - (171) - -
Dividend received - - = LY 61
= < (50)
Remuneration paid = . - = 139
3 R - (149)
{il) Outstanding transactions:
{% In Lakhs)
- 23,641 839 1] - - -
Trade Receivables 2
' (23,367) (882) (0] (11) :
Other financial Assets - - 1,650 - -
(ICD) - (1,650)
Other financial Assets = 2,961 2 =
2 (2,958) (9 -
R 1 [E = .
Other non financial Assets =1 L
240 3 a6 4 5 14 .
Trade payables
& (160) (11) (253) (6) : (13) :
Other non-financial - 1,921 108 - . -
liabilities - (3,088) (219} - £

* During the previous year, company has written off Trade receivables of Rs 1,440 Lakhs and Other financial assets of Rs.381 Lakhs.
Company has provided support letter to Haldia Water Management Limited for X 500 Lakhs for meeting its liabilities as and when they fall due for a

period of 12 months.

Previous year figures in italics and in brackets.




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities & Services Company Limited)
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements

26(E): Contingent Liabilities and commitments

Claims not acknowledged by the Company:

- Sales Tax, VAT & Service Tax 9,530 9,414
- Legal cases 196 211
- Income Tax 1,714 1,714

26(F): The dues as defined in the "Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" has been determined to the extent such parties
have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. The disclosures relating to Micro & Small Enterprises forming part of
note 19(a) as at March 31, 2021 are as under:

Due in respect of Micro, Small and Medium Industries is :

(a) (i) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at the end of 9,508 1115
accounting year

(ii) Interest due thereon 3 2
(b){i) Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during

the year 25,061 9,919
(ii) Interest paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year - -
{c} Interest due and payable for the year ,where the principal has been paid but interest under the MSMED Act, 4 25
2006 not paid

{d) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year 140 133

26(G): Earnings per Share (EPS)

(i) Profit/{Loss) for the year 3,448 3,338
(i) Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity Shareholders of the Company used in calculating basic/Diluted EPS 3,448 3,338
(iii) Weighted average number of Equity Shares used as denominator in calculating Basic/Diluted EPS 2,43,50,000 2,43,50,000
(iv} Nominal value of Ordinary Shares (Rs) 10 10
(v) Basic /Diluted Earnings per Ordinary Share (Rs) 14.16 13.71

26(H): Income tax recognised in profit or loss

Current Tax
- In respect of current year 991 982
- In respect of prior year 274 (34)
Deferred Tax 66 559
Total Income tax recognised in the current year 1,331 1,507




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities & Services Company Limited)
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit before tax from continuing operations 4,856 4,352
{a) Income tax expense calculated at 25.168% 1,222 1,095
(b) Decrease in tax expenses due to benefit of chapter VI deductions (11) -

(c) Effect of expenses not allowed in income tax 97 32
(d) Adjustments to current tax in respect of prior periods 274 (34)
(e) Gratuity unpaid in FY20 claimed in FY21 (256) -

(f) Effect of change in Income tax rates on deferred tax - 888
(g) Effect of reversal of provision on which deferred tax was not created 2 (461}
(h) Tax on exempt income - (13)
(i} Tax charge for Vivad se Vishwas Scheme for AY 2011-12 3 -

Total 1,331 1,507
Income tax expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss 1,331 1,507

The tax rate used for the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 reconciliation above is the corporate tax rate of 25.168% payable by
corporate entities in India on taxable profits under the Indian tax laws.
Significant component of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2021 is as follows:

(X in Lakhs)

Deferred Tax Asset

Provision for leave salaries 1,343 (310) 1,033 21 1,054
Other Provisions 2,096 (287) 1,809 (23) 1,786
Provision for Employee Separation Scheme 620 (174) 446 (30) 416
Deferred Income 2,718 (439) 2,279 162 2,441
Total 6,777 (1,210) 5,567 130 5,697
Deferred Tax Liability

Fixed Assets 3,605 {651) 2,954 196 3,150
Total 3,605 (651) 2,954 196 3,150
Net Deferred tax asset 3,172 (559) 2,613 (66) 2,547

26(1) Leases:

Depreciation Charge of Right to Use Assets

Freehold Land 3A 0 0
Property, Plant & Equipment 3A 114 111
Office Equipment 3A

Interest Expenses (Included in Finance Cost) 24
Expenses related to Short term Leases (Included in Other expenses)




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities & Services Company Limited)
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended was X 151 Lakhs {for the year ended March 31, 2020 % 195 Lakhs)
Rent expenses also include rent of guest houses and company quarters which have not been classified as short term lease,

26(J): The company is not having any financial fiability classified under financing activity in the statement of cash flow as at March 31, 2021 and
hence additional disclosures required under Ind AS 7 related to movement of financial liabilities under financing activities are not applicable.

26(K): The dividend declared by the Company is based on profits available for distribution as reported in the financial statements of the Company.
On April 27,2021 the Board of Directors of the Company have proposed a dividend of X 2/- per Ordinary share of 10 each in respect of the year
ended March 31, 2021 subject to the approval of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. If approved, the dividend would result in a cash
outflow of X487 Lakhs.

26(L): The Company has three major business segments viz. Power distribution, Town management - Operation & Maintenance services and
Construction services which includes business-laying of water networking and civil construction. Company’s major line of business falls under
essential services like Power distribution (regulated business under Jharkhand State Electricity Regulatory Commission), Town management -
Operation & Maintenance services which includes Water distribution, Municipal Waste management, Public Health Services (road sweeping,
garbage collection), Road maintenance, park and garden maintenance etc.

Basis the significant line of business falling under essential services and majority transactions are with Tata Steel Limited (Holding Company),
management believes no adjustments are required in the financial statements as it does not impact the current financial year or future operations
due to COVID 19 pendamic.

26(M): The Code on Social Security, 2020 {'Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post- employment received Indian
Parliament approval and Presedential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in Gazzate of India and subsequently on November
13, 2020 draft rules were publised and invited stakeholders' suggestions. However, the date on which the Code will come into affect has not been
notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the code
becomes effective.
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